
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 3, 2024/7:00 P.M. 

RIVERVIEW CITY HALL 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

  14100 CIVIC PARK DR. 

RIVERVIEW, MI  48193-7600 

734-281-4201

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Councilmember Gunaga

3. INVOCATION:  Councilmember Workman

4. AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS.

None. 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES.

5.1  APPROVE MINUTES OF THE 05/20/24 REGULAR RIVERVIEW 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AND THE CONDENSED VERSION FOR 

PUBLICATION - CITY CLERK. 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS.

None. 



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

 7.      PUBLIC COMMENTS. 
 

 

 

 8.     ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS. 
  

None. 
 

9.     CONSENT AGENDA. 
 

9.1 RATIFY EMERGENCY SEWAGE PUMP REPLACEMENT FOR 

THE FORDLINE LIFT STATION WITH KENNEDY INDUSTRIES FOR 

A TOTAL COST OF $24,945.00 - DPW. 
 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: The sewage pump at the Fordline 

lift station has failed.  The pump was removed by Kennedy and sent to their 

facility for tear down in order to get a quote on repairs.  It is recommended to 

replace this pump.  The City Manager authorized the emergency replacement of 

the sewage pump using Kennedy Industries, Inc. (an authorized vendor for pump 

repairs for the City). A sewage pump replacement of this type was budgeted for 

in the current fiscal year. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED: City Council is requested to consider ratifying the 

emergency sewage pump repair for the Fordline Lift Station by Kennedy 

Industries in the amount of $24,945.00. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Pictures and quote for pump repair from Kennedy Industry.  

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/16/24 

Financial Certification N/R  

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/16/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

9.2 REJECT BID 2546 AND AUTHORIZE REBID OF HVAC SERVICES 

– DPW. 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND:  On 04/15/2024, The City 

Council authorized the seeking of bids for HVAC Services at the DPW.  On 

4/17/2024, a notice of Invitation to Bid for proposals was posted on the city 

website and was also posted on MITN. Five (5) bid proposals were received, 

opened, and read aloud on 5/2/2024.  

 

Upon review of the five (5) bid proposals for this project, the Director of DPW 

recommends rejecting the bids, citing new Specifications are needed in order to 

receive proper proposals.  HVAC services are used at, but not limited to, 10 

different City buildings.  

 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to reject the bid and 

authorize a rebid of HVAC Services.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: Bid Tabulation, Original Specifications, and Revised 

Specifications.   

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.3 APPROVE RENEWAL OF THE VIDEO SERVICE LOCAL 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR COMCAST – CITY CLERK  

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: The City of Riverview and 

Comcast currently have a ten (10) year agreement pursuant to 2006 PA 480 MCL 

484.3301 et seq. where Comcast has a video service provider fee of 5% and a 

PEG Fee of 1%. The same fees are included in the Renewal Agreement. 

 

The Franchise Agreement shall be for a period of ten (10) years from the date it 

is issued. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to consider approving the 

Renewed Agreement for the Video Service Local Franchise Agreement for 

Comcast under the recommendations of the City Manager and the City Attorney. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Comcast Renewal Agreement 

 

 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/20/24 

Financial Certification N/R  

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/20/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.4 AWARD COOPERATIVE BID PURCHASE OF A STORAGE AREA 

NETWORK SYSTEM TO SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP OF 

SOMERSET, NJ IN THE AMOUNT OF $54,097.73 – IT DEPARTMENT.  

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: The City of Riverview 

Purchasing Manual, Section 10.2 A, authorizes the City’s participation in 

cooperative purchases to take advantage of volume buying.  The State of 

Michigan, through its Enterprise Procurement Program, has awarded a contract 

for the purchase of storage area networks to SHI International Corp of Somerset, 

NJ.  The Director of Information Technology is requesting the purchase and 

installation of a storage area network (SAN), for the purchase price of $ 

$54,097.73.  

 

The current highly reliable (SAN) system is end of life and will no longer be 

supported after October 2024. This device houses the City’s data and allows for 

a more rapid recovery time objective in the event of a major hardware failure, 

software failure, or malware event.   

 

 Funds have been appropriated in GL# 402-903-998.050 for this bid award. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to consider approving Bid 

Award to SHI International Corp of Somerset, NJ for the purchase of a storage 

area  network in the amount of $ $54,097.73. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: SHI Bid Quote. 

 

FINANCE CERTIFICATION: The Finance Director certifies that funds are 

available in the 2024/25 operating budget. 

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/18/24 

Financial Certification N/R  

City Attorney Endorsement N/R 05/18/24 

Department Recommendation X 05/18/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/28/24 

Financial Certification X 05/28/24 

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/28/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

 

9.5 APPROVE PURCHASE OF REPLACEMENT HARDWARE 

SOFTWARE AND INSTALLATION SERVICES TO WEST SHORE 

SERVICES, INC. OF ALLENDALE, MI IN THE AMOUNT OF $10,340.00 

– IT DEPARTMENT.  

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: The single siren system for 

emergency notification in the City of Riverview was constructed at the Fire 

Station in 1974/75. Subsequent to the Atofina incident, the City of Riverview 

was at the forefront in the Downriver area researching various methods and 

equipment to upgrade the early warning system. 

 

The technology was upgraded in 2002, and has been maintained and serviced by 

West Shore Services. Recently a computer system that manages the alerting 

system has become unstable and one of the two desktop controllers that operate 

the Siren System has failed. 

 

This is a vital part of our emergency services and needs to be fully operational. 

West shore is the authorized vendor for the Federal Signal equipment that needs 

replacement/upgrading. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to consider approving Bid 

Award to WEST SHORE SERVICES, INC. of Allendale, MI for the purchase of 

a storage area network in the amount of $10,340.00.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: West Shore Services, Inc. Quote. 

 

FINANCE CERTIFICATION: The Finance Director certifies that funds are 

available in the 2023/24 operating budget. 

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.6 AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF ADDENDUM EXTENDING 

AGREEMENT FOR UNIFOR/TOWES/RUGS WITH UNIFIRST 

CORPORATION – DPW/LAND PRESERVE/GOLF COURSE 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: In 2018, the City of Riverview 

entered into an agreement with Unifirst Corporation to service uniforms, towels 

and rugs for various departments within the City. Unifirst Corporation is a part 

of Sourcewell Preferred Vendors, formerly known as National Joint Powers 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/24/24 

Financial Certification X 05/24/24 

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/14/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

Alliance. The Agreement was approved for a three-year period. Unifirst 

Corporation has requested a new three-year agreement in a letter dated 

05/15/2024 to extend with no price increase for the first year. Each additional 

year would be accessed an increase of 5%.  

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to authorize the execution 

of the addendum with Unifirst Corporation to extend servicing uniforms, towels 

and rugs for a three-year period. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Contract Renewal Terms of May 15, 2024. 

 

FINANCE CERTIFICATION: The Finance Director/Purchasing Agent 

certifies that funds have been appropriated and are available. 

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.   RESOLUTIONS.  
 

10.1 ADOPT RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2024/25 CITY OF 

RIVERVIEW ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET AND MILLAGE RATES 

- FINANCE. 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/ BACKGROUND:  The City Charter requires that 

the City Council adopt the annual City operating budget not later than the second 

Monday in June each year.  In order to adopt the City operating budget, a public 

hearing must first be held regarding the City operating budget and the City 

supporting millage rates.  The public hearing was held on May 20, 2024. 

 

The 2024/25 overall operating budget for the City of Riverview, excluding 

enterprise funds, includes estimated revenues of $19,443,157 and appropriations 

of $19,631,177. The largest portion of this budget is the General Fund with 

estimated revenues of $13,694,314 and appropriations of $13,580.027; a small 

surplus of $114,043 will be added back to the fund balance. 

 

The following City property tax rates are being submitted for adoption for the 

2024/25 fiscal year, pursuant to Michigan Compiled Law sections 211.23E, 

211.34D and Public Act 40 of 1995: 

 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/29/24 

Financial Certification X 05/29/24 

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/29/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

Tax Rate (see note): July 2024 July 2023 Difference

City Operating 14.627                    14.65$                    (0.0230)$                  

Library Operating 0.80                        0.80                        0.0000$                   

Local Roads 0.70                        0.70                        0.0000$                   

Fire Services 1.47                        1.47                        0.0000$                   

Public Safety Special 

Assessment 2.00                        0.00                        2.0000$                   

Refuse Collection 1.74                        1.74                        0.0000$                   
Water Main and Construction

     Bonds 2.40                        2.70                        (0.3000)$                  

Total Millage Rate 23.737$                   22.060$                   1.677$                    

2024 Taxable Value of all properties is $413,451,998

Note:  Rate is per $1,000 of Taxable Value

 
 

The resolution will satisfy all the above referenced Public Act requirements.  The 

above referenced rates do not reflect the maximum authorized rates that can be 

considered.  All rates are levied under the authority of section (9.1) and Michigan 

Compiled Law section 397.201 for Library levies. 

 

The Land Preserve contributions to the General Fund, and Capital Improvement 

& Equipment Fund are budgeted at $500,000 for 2024/25.   

 

Further, for the tax year beginning July 1, 2024, the City of Riverview’s Headlee 

tax cap was slightly reduced by .9982. 

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  The City Council is requested to adopt a resolution 

approving the 2024/25 City of Riverview annual operating budget and millage 

rates for City operations, City debt, refuse collection, local roads, and library 

services. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution and Michigan Department of Treasury Form 

L-4029. 

                                      

                                                                                           

ENDORSEMENTS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11.    ADMINISTRATION.  

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/28/24 

Financial Certification N/R  

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/28/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



City of Riverview City Council Regular Meeting – 06/03/24 

       

 

11.1 AUTHORIZE TETRATECH CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 

 

COMMUNITY IMPACT/BACKGROUND: TetraTech has requested a one 

year contract extension to the current Environmental Engineering contract in a 

letter dated 04/18/2024 with an increase of 3%. This contract extension was 

discussed and recommended by the Riverview Land Preserve and the Ad Hoc 

Environmental Engineering Committee concurred with this request at their 

05/09/2024 meeting.  

 

ACTION REQUESTED:  City Council is requested to authorize the execution 

of the addendum with TetraTech to approve this one-year extension. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Contract Renewal Terms of April 18, 2024. 

 

 

ENDORSEMENTS:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.  ORDINANCES. 
 

None. 

 

13.    OTHER BUSINESS. 
 

 

 

14. CLOSED SESSION. 
 

None. 

 

15.  ADJOURNMENT. 

 
 

 Required Date 

City Manager Endorsement X 05/30/24 

Financial Certification X  

City Attorney Endorsement N/R  

Department Recommendation X 05/30/24 

Advisory Commission Recommendation N/R  



REGULAR MEETING OF THE RIVERVIEW CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF RIVERVIEW, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

HELD ON MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024 A.D. 

IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF 

THE PETER ROTTEVEEL MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14100 CIVIC PARK DRIVE, RIVERVIEW, MICHIGAN 48193-7600 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Mayor Pro Tem Webb 

Present: Councilmembers Gunaga, ONeil, Pray, Robbins, Workman 

Excused: Mayor Swift (vacation)  

Also Present: City Manager Jeffrey Dobek, City Clerk Shane Harrison, Land Preserve Director 

Kevin Sisk, Finance Director Ann Darzniek, Human Resources Director Tracy Duncan, Police 

Chief John Allen, Fire Chief Ron Lammers, Parks and Recreation Director Todd Dickman, 

Department of Public Works Director Jeff Webb, Golf Course Director Mike Kettler, Library 

Director Azita Frattarelli, Carlisle Wortman Community Development Director Dave Scurto, 

Charles E. Raines City Engineer Sabak, Attorney Hurley 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember ONeil. 

The Invocation was given by Councilmember Workman. 

AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLOMATIONS: 

None. 

MINUTES: 

Motion by Councilmember ONeil, supported by Councilmember Robbins, that the Minutes of 

the Regular Meeting of May 6, 2024, Special Meeting of May 13, 2024 and the condensed 

versions for publication, be Approved. 

Carried Unanimously. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

Mayor Pro Tem Webb opened the Public Hearing at 7:17 p.m. to conduct the Public Hearing on 

the Proposed 2024/25 Annual Operating Budget and Supporting Tax Rates for the City of 

Riverview. 

No public comments were offered. 

Motion by Councilmember Pray, supported by Councilmember ONeil, that the Public Hearing be 

closed. 

Carried Unanimously. 

The Public Hearing closed at 7:18 p.m. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Mayor Pro Tem Webb offered public comments. 

ORGANIZATIONAL BUSINESS: 

None. 

Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 5.1



Riverview City Council Meeting of May 20, 2024 2 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

Motion by Councilmember Gunaga, supported by Councilmember Robbins, that the Consent 

Agenda be approved as follows: 

 Item 9.1: Authorize Execution of Addendum Extending Agreement for MDR Landfill

Services LLC for Seeding and Mulching at the Land Preserve – Land Preserve.

 Item 9.2: Authorize Solicitation to bid for New Golf Cars – Golf Course.

Carried Unanimously. 

RESOLUTIONS: 

Item 10.1: Motion by Councilmember ONeil, supported by Councilmember Pray, that 

Resolution No. 24-12, Approving the Deficit Elimination Plan for the Golf Course, be 

Adopted.  

CITY OF RIVERVIEW 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-12 

APPROVING THE DEFICIT ELIMINATION PLAN 

FOR THE GOLF COURSE 

WHEREAS, The City of Riverview’s Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 

indicated the presence of a $58,473 net position working capital deficit in the Golf Course 

Fund. 

WHEREAS, Act 275 of the Public Acts of 1980 requires that a Deficit Elimination Plan be 

formulated by the local unit of government and filed with the Michigan Department of 

Treasury: 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the City of Riverview’s legislative body adopts 

the following as the Golf Course Fund Deficit. 

Audited Audited Audited Audited Projected Projected Projected Projected

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28

Unrestricted Net Position -96,973 301,414 40,903 -58,473 134,988 417,674 620,080 739,799

Current Assets-Current Liabilites

Revenues

Green Fees 1,109,531 1,112,855 1,333,454 1,520,000 1,871,000 1,871,000 1,871,000 1,871,000

Equipment Rentals 389,870 438,707 499,759 505,400 550,425 550,425 550,425 550,425

Other 403,316 393,085 505,533 516,250 537,250 537,250 537,250 537,250

Total Revenues 1,902,717 1,944,647 2,338,746 2,541,650 2,958,675 2,958,675 2,958,675 2,958,675

% Increase Revenues 2% 20% 9% 16% 0% 0% 0%

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 301,632 1,028,657 895,244 1,143,916 1,287,284 1,325,903 1,365,680 1,406,650

Supplies 230,587 261,545 305,569 607,480 615,200 633,656 652,666 672,246

Other Services and Charges 518,813 605,990 702,771 596,793 773,505 796,710 820,611 845,230

Depreciation 433,358 393,716 393,710 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000

Non operating Revenue/Exp -260,366 19,491 21,696

Total Expenses 1,224,024 2,309,399 2,318,990 2,748,189 3,075,989 3,156,269 3,238,957 3,324,125

Add back Depreciation 433,358 393,716 393,710 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000

Long-term adjustments -713,664 -289,475 -512,842 0 0 0 0 0

Change in Net Position 398,387 (260,511)    (99,376)          193,461 282,686 202,406 119,718 34,550

Net Position - Beginning of Year (96,973)       301,414 40,903 (58,473)       134,988 417,674 620,080 739,799

Net Position - End of Year 301,414 40,903 (58,473)          134,988 417,674 620,080 739,799 774,348

Current Assets - Current Liabilities

% Increase Expenses 89% 0% 19% 12% 3% 3% 3%

Note: The fee structure was increased to eliminate the deficit effective March 1, 2024.

City of Riverview

Golf Deficit Elimination Plan

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Riverview’s Finance Director submits the 

Deficit Elimination Plan for the Golf Course to the Michigan Department of Treasury for 

certification. 



Riverview City Council Meeting of May 20, 2024 3 

AYES: Mayor Pro Tem Webb, Councilmembers Gunaga, ONeil, Pray, Robbins, Workman 

NAYS: None. 

EXCUSED: Mayor Swift 

ADOPTED this 20th day of May, 2024 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________________ 

Brian Webb, Mayor Pro Tem 

I, Shane Anne Harrison duly authorized City Clerk of the City of Riverview, do hereby certify 

the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Riverview City Council at 

a Regular Meeting of May 20, 2024. 

( S E A L ) 

__________________________________________ 

Shane Anne Harrison, City Clerk  

ADMINISTRATION: 

None. 

ORDINANCES: 

None. 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

Motion by Councilmember Pray, supported by Councilmember ONeil, that starting from the 

next Regular Council Meeting that a complete printed copy of each Council Agenda, including 

the backup, be made available to residents at the City Clerk’s office and also published on the 

City website on the same day that it is made available to Council, to the extent that it is possible 

without sharing confidential information, be Approved. 

Carried Unanimously. 

Motion by Councilmember Pray, supported by Councilmember Workman, that we direct the 

City Manager and his team to communicate with the US EPA our request that it undertake 

testing of the Arkema site and the surrounding residences that currently live in proximity to the 

Arkema West site and share with us its findings and conclusions as soon as possible, 

furthermore to communicate our request to our representatives in the US Senate and House of 

Representatives, be Approved. 

Carried Unanimously. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

Motion by Councilmember Workman, supported by Councilmember Pray, that the meeting be 

adjourned. 

Carried Unanimously.  

The meeting adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 



Riverview City Council Meeting of May 20, 2024 4 

____________________________________ 

Brian Webb, Mayor Pro Tem 

____________________________________ 

Shane Anne Harrison, City Clerk 



CITY OF RIVERVIEW, WAYNE COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES HELD ON MONDAY, MAY 20, 2024 

The Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Presiding: Mayor Pro Tem Webb 

Present: Councilmembers Gunaga, ONeil, Pray, Robbins, Workman 

Excused: Mayor Swift 

Also Present: Various Department Heads, Attorney Hurley 

Approved minutes of Regular Meeting of May 6, 2024 and Special Meeting May 13, 2024 by unanimous vote. 

Conduct Public Hearing on the Proposed 2024/25 Annual Operating Budget and Supporting Tax Rates for the 

City of Riverview. 

Mayor Pro Tem Webb opened the Public Hearing at 7:17 p.m. 

Closed the Public Hearing at 7:18 p.m. by unanimous vote. 

Mayor Pro Tem Webb offered public comments. 

Approved Consent Agenda as follows by unanimous vote: 

 Item 9.1: Authorize Execution of Addendum Extending Agreement for MDR Landfill Services

LLC for Seeding and Mulching at the Land Preserve – Land Preserve.

 Item 9:2: Authorize Solicitation to bid for New Golf Cars – Golf Course

Adopted Resolution approving the Deficit Elimination Plan for the Golf Course by unanimous vote. 

Approved that Council Agenda and Backup be made available at the Clerk’s Office and on the City Website 

beginning with the next Regular Council Meeting by unanimous vote. 

Approved that the City Manager communicates with the US EPA to request testing of the Arkema site and 

surrounding residences. 

Adjourned Meeting at 7:43 p.m. by unanimous vote.  

DETAILED MINUTES/ORDINANCES AVAILABLE AT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK. 

Brian Webb, Mayor Pro Tem   

Shane Anne Harrison, City Clerk 



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

May 10, 2024 

Mr. Jeff Webb 
City of Riverview 
Georgia Ave & Fordline Rd 
Riverview, MI 48193 

RE:   Vaughan SE3F1-460V-055 Fordline Sanitary #2 Sewage Pump 
  Serial Number: 66419B 
  Customer Reference Order #: N/A 
  Kennedy Industries #: 124682 

Mr. Webb: 

Attached are photos with descriptions of the parts in need of repair or replacement. If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

Sincerely, 

Mike Horn 

Repair Center Manager 

KENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC. 

Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.1



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

PUMP 

• Pump at disassembly.

• Pump spins freely by hand at disassembly.

PUMP 

• Debris was wrapped around mechanical seal causing failure.

• Water found in oil housing.



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

IMPELLER 

• Impeller bore clearance to the shaft is 0.003” and within specification.

• Impeller is heavily worn.

• Impeller will be replaced with mew.

BACK PLATE 

• Back plate is heavily worn and beyond repair.

• Back plate will be replaced with new.



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

WEAR PLATE 

• Wear plate is heavily worn and beyond repair.

• Wear plate will be replaced with new.

BEARINGS 

• Bearings show normal wear.

• Bearings will be replaced with new.



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

MECHANICAL SEAL 

• Mechanical seal was damaged from debris.

• Mechanical seal will be replaced with new.

ROTOR SHAFT 

• Debris caused snap ring to heavily groove the rotor shaft.

• Rotor shaft total indicator runout is .008” and is out of specification.

• Rotor shaft will be removed and replaced with new.



   P.O. Box 930079  ۰4925 Holtz Dr.  ۰Wixom, MI 48393  ۰ Phone (248) 684-1200  ۰Fax (248) 684-6011 

STUB SHAFT 

• Stub shaft is heavily worn and beyond repair.

• Stub shaft will be replaced with new.



QUOTATION

RIV110
CITY OF RIVERVIEW
14100 CIVIC PARK DRIVE
hmcgeachy@cityofriverview.com
RIVERVIEW, MI 48193 

JOB TITLE SLPCUSTOMER REF/PO#

B
I
L
L

T
O

ATTENTION:

5/10/2024 0057299
DATE NUMBER PAGE

1 2of

Accepted By:
Date:
PO#:

SHIPPING TYPE

WE ARE PLEASED TO PROPOSE THE FOLLOWING FOR YOUR CONSIDERATION:

FIELD SERVICE

JEFF WEBB       734-281-4270     jwebb@cityofriverview.com

SAH/CRBFORDLINE SANITARY STATION, P2, VAUGHAN, PUMP, 
SE3F1-460V-055, SEWAGE

Ship To:

DESCRIPTIONQTY

THE FOLLOWING QUOTE IS FOR THE COST OF LABOR AND MATERIALS TO REPAIR THE ABOVE REFERENCED PUMP.

NEW PARTS REQUIRED: 
********************
(1) UPPER MECHANICAL SEAL
(1) LOWER MECHANICAL SEAL
(1) UPPER BEARING
(1) LOWER BEARING
(1) O-RING KIT
(2) SNAP RINGS
(1) ROTOR SHAFT
(1) SET OF HARDWARE
(1) BACKPLATE - OEM
(1) IMPELLER - OEM
(1) STUB SHAFT - OEM
(1) STUB SHAFT BOLT - OEM
(1) SUCTION PLATE - OEM
(1) CUTTER NUT - OEM
(8) ADJUSTING SLEEVES - OEM
(1) UPPER CUTTER - OEM
(1) SET OF SHIMS - OEM

LABOR REQUIRED: 
***************
PICK UP AND TRANSPORT TO KENNEDY INDUSTRIES' WIXOM REPAIR FACILITY.

PERFORM ALL ELECTRICAL TESTS AND TEST RUN.  

DISASSEMBLE, SANDBLAST, CLEAN AND INSPECT COMPLETE PUMP. 

CLEAN, BAKE AND TEST STATOR ASSEMBLY.  

DIMENSIONALLY MEASURE ALL OPERATING CLEARANCES AND RECORD ON INSPECTION REPORT.

REMOVE AND REPLACE ROTOR SHAFT.

ASSEMBLE ALL ROTATING PARTS ON SHAFT AND PLACE IN BALANCE MACHINE. 

VERIFY TOTAL INDICATOR RUN OUTS THEN DYNAMICALLY BALANCE ROTOR TO ISO G2.5. 



QUOTATION

5/10/2024 0057299
DATE NUMBER PAGE

2 2of

DESCRIPTIONQTY
ASSEMBLE PUMP COMPLETE WITH NEW PARTS LISTED. 

PRESSURE TEST SEAL CHAMBER TO ENSURE LEAK FREE. 

INSTALL NEW OIL OR COOLANT IN SEAL CHAMBER. 

PERFORM ALL ELECTRICAL TESTS AND TEST RUN. 

PRESERVE AND CRATE FOR FIELD SERVICE INSTALLATION.

TOTAL REPAIR COST: $22,995.00

DELIVERY: 6 WEEKS (AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER)
************************************************************************
IF YOU CHOOSE NOT TO REPAIR THIS PUMP, YOU WILL BE CHARGED AN INSPECTION FEE OF $1,430.00
************************************************************************

THE FOLLOWING QUOTE IS FOR FIELD SERVICE REQUIRED ON YOUR ABOVE REFERENCED PUMP STATION:

FIELD SERVICE LABOR REQUIRED:
*****************************
KENNEDY INDUSTRIES WILL PROVIDE (1) FIELD SERVICE TECHNICIAN(S) ONSITE TO INSTALL YOUR REPAIRED VAUGHAN 
PUMP, START UP, TEST RUN AND VERIFY PROPER OPERATION.

FIELD SERVICE INSTALL COST: $1,495.00

************************************************************************ 
TOTAL REPAIR COST: $22,995.00 

TOTAL FIELD SERVICE COST: $1,495.00

TOTAL COST: $24,490.00  

DELIVERY: 6 WEEKS (AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER)    
************************************************************************
PLEASE PROVIDE WRITTEN OR VERBAL AUTHORIZATION SO THAT WE MAY RESPOND TO YOUR REQUIREMENTS. IF YOU 
HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, COMMENTS, OR ARE IN NEED OF ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PLEASE FEEL FREE TO 
CONTACT ME AT (248) 684-1200.

SINCERELY,

CODY BYERS
CBYERS@KENNEDYIND.COM

This quote is subject to and incorporates by reference Kennedy Industries, Inc.'s ("Kennedy")  Terms & Conditions  (Rev'd 6/2023) and 
Customer Warranty available at www.kennedyind.com which will be provided by email upon written request. Kennedy reserves the right to 

change the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranty for future orders. By accepting this quote and/or issuing a purchase order relative to 
this quote, buyer expressly agrees to the provisions set forth in the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranty posted on Kennedy's website.

QUOTE VALID FOR 30 DAYS. CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO AN ADDITIONAL 3% 
CHARGE NO TAXES OF ANY KIND ARE INCLUDED IN THIS PROPOSAL. PAYMENT TERMS: NET 30 TOTAL:

P.O. Box 930079 Wixom, MI 48393   -   4925 Holtz Drive Wixom, MI 48393   -   Phone: 248-684-1200   -   Fax: 248-684-6011

www.Kennedyind.com

$24,490.00



@ HFlllEDvlir,ltuT

B RIV11O

i. crrv oF RIVERVIEW
L 14100 CNIC PARK DRIVE

t hmcgeachy@cityofriverview. com
O RIVERVIEW, MI48193

iTION

slt4lzoz4 | ooszsaT | 7or2

Accepted av, ?a *Z
Date: 53 7c1. ){
PO#: Af iL{A

ATTENTION:

JEFF WEBB 734-287-4270

WE ARE PLEASED TO PROPOSE THE FOLLOWING

Ship To:

jwebb@cityofriveruiew. com

FOR YOUR CONSIDEMTION:

FORDLINE SANITARY STATION, P2, VAUGHAN, PUMP,

SE3F1-460V-055, SEWAGE

BELOW ]S A QUOTE FOR A NEW REPLACEMENT PUMP AND FIELD SERVICE COSTS.

(1) VAUGHAN EXPLOSTON PROOF, SUBMERSTBLE SEWAGE CHOPPER PUMP MODEL SE3F1-460V-0s5
PUMP RATED 5 HP,3 PHASE 460V, WITH 3" DISCHARGE AND

25 FT. MOTOR AND SENSOR CABLE. PUMP EQUIPPED WITH SEAL FAIL/HIGH TEMP CABLE.

TOTAL NEW REPLACEMENT PUMP COST: $23,450.00

DELIVERY: 8-10 WEEKS (AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER)
,<*****x*** x*r<******x**r<x<*******r<**x***x*****x**r<x<

THE FOLLOWING QUOTE IS FOR FIELD SERVICE REQUIRED ON YOUR ABOVE REFERENCED PUMP STATION:

FIELD SERV]CE LABOR REQUIRED:
** ******** *>k***********r<*x*xr(
KENNEDY INDUSTRIES WILL PROViDE (1) FIELD SERVICE TECHNIC]AN(S) ONSITE TO INSTALL YOUR NEVY VAUGHAN

PUVIP, START UP, TEST RUN AND VERiFY PROPER OPEMTION.

FIELD SERVICE INSTALL COST: $1,495.00

** *****x**x>k********r<**<r(*.r<r<x*xxxxx********xxx xx*x*< ***>kx ** ******** xx xr<x*x

TOTAL REPLACEMENT PUMP COST: $23,450.00

TOTAL FIELD SERVICE COST: $1,495.00

TOTAL COST: $24,945.00

DELIVERY: 8-10 WEEKS (AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER)
,<r<**r<***xxxxx******x**********)k**>k*>k*x*xxxx*******x*xx******xxxxx**r(*r<*>k

DATE NUMBER PAGE

CUSTOMER REF/PO# JOB TITLE SLP SHIPPINGTYPE

SAH/CRB FIELD SERVICE

ow Torscnrpnorrr



@ ilffllIEBYlillJtur ,TION

slt4l2o24 | oosz:at | 2or2

DESCRIPTION

PLEASE PROVIDE WRITTEN OR VERBAL AUTHORIZATION SO THAT WE MAY RESPOND TO YOUR REQUIREMENTS. IF YOU

HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, COMIUENTS, OR ARE IN NEED OF ANY ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PLEASE FEEL FREE TO
CoNTACT ME AT (248) 684-1200.

SINCERELY,

CODY BYERS

CBYERS@KENNEDYIN D. COM

ThisquoteissubjecttoandincorporatesbyrefererEeKennedylndustries,Inc.'s("Kennedy") Terms&Conditions (Rev'd6/2023)and
Customer Warranty available at www,kennedyind.cor which will be provided by email upon written request. Kennedy reserues the right to

change the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranly for future orders. By accepting this quote and/or issuing a purchase order relative t0
this quote, buyer expressly agrees to the provisions se: forth in the Terms & Conditions and Customer Warranty posted on Kennedy's website.

QUOTE VALrD FOR 30 DAYS. CREDTT CARD PAYMENTS ARE SUBTECT TO AN ADDTTTONAL 3o/o
NO TAXES OF ANY KIND ARE INCLUDED IN THTS PROPOSAL. PAYMENT TERMS: NET 30 TOTAL: $24,945.OO

P.O. Box 930079 Wixom, MI48313 - 4925 Holtz Drive Wixom, MI48393 - Phone: 248-68+7200 - Fax 248-68+60tt

www.Kennedyind,com

DATE NUNBER PAGE



Design Comfort Co. Inc. Detroit Boiler Company Rolls Mechanical Syenergy Engineering Svs. Allied Bldg Svs Comp of Detroit

Jeff Fellows Laura Snyder Austin Acker Ryan Phillips Jake Mills

4023 S. Old US 23, Ste 109 2931 Beaufait St. 1490 Torrey Rd 2129 Austin Ave 1801 Howard Street

Brighton, MI 48114 Detroit, MI 48207 Fenton, MI 48430 Rochester Hills, MI 48309 Detroit, MI 48216

Standard Hours Service Call 

Fee $50.00 $50.00 

Standard Hours Hourly Rate $125.00 $102.00 $99.00 $103.00 $89.00 

After Hours Service Call Fee $60.00 

After Hours Hourly Rate $175.00 $153.00 $148.50 $154.50 $133.50

Parts/Material Markup 15% 25% 15-30%

Double Time (Holidays)/ 

Premium Time $198.00 $210.00 $178.00 

Standard Trip Charge (per 

truck/per day) $80.00 

Automated Specialist 

Straight Time $120.00 

Automated Specialist 

Overtime $180.00 

CITY OF RIVERVIEW
BID #2546-HVAC Services-DPW 

BID TABULATION

May 02, 2024 / 2:00 PM

Council Meeting 
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.2



CITY OF RIVERVIEW 

SPECIFICATIONS 

HVAC Services / DPW 

BID #2373 

 The City of Riverview is looking for a vendor that will be responsible for repairing and maintaining all of 

the city’s HVAC assets plus give suggestions for future upgrades.  

 Responsibilities will include but not limited to, the fall shut down and spring startup of all HVAC assets 

including the cooling tower and chiller. The vendor must be able to inspect, clean and certify all city 

owned boilers. The vendor must be knowledgeable and have experience with troubleshooting and 

repairing pneumatic HVAC controls as the city hall building is all pneumatic controls. 

The bid is for a three-year period, services rendered will vary during that period. 

The contractor must be able to service all but not limited to, units listed below. 

Community Center 

14300 Civic Park Drive 

Riverview, MI  48193 

2-forced air furnaces 

2-A/C condensing units

Department of Public Works 

18550 Krause 

Riverview, MI  48193 

2-forced air furnaces 

2-A/C condensing units

Fire Hall 

14300 Sibley 

Riverview, MI  48193 

A/C condensing unit 

1- low pressure 300,000 BTU Lochnvar boiler Mod #CHN300-F9

Trane tracer control system

Riverview Highlands Golf Course Club House 

15015 Sibley 

Riverview, MI  48193 

4-HVAC units:

Carrier Mod #48TFE012-501 Ser. #5100G34107

Carrier Mod #48TFE012-501 Ser. #5100G34108

Trane Mod #YCD09D3HOBE Ser. #L29104659D

Arocaire Mod #PGMB060H150IN1 Ser. #R920400017

Riverview Highlands Golf Practice Facility Building 

15015 Sibley 



Riverview, MI  48193 

2- HVAC Units

Bard Wall Mount Units Mod #WA242-A10 Ser. #140J001495009-02

Riverview Highlands Golf Course Maintenance Shop 

14701 Sibley 

Riverview, MI  48193 

1- Rheem gas furnace Mod #3600-160AB Ser. #CN2B103F07730703

10 units inside shop area – Re-Ververber-Ray Overhead Radiant Gas Heaters

Land Preserve 

20863 Grange 

Riverview, MI  48193 

Carrier Furnace & A/C (roof top) – Ticket Office 

Carrier Furnace & A/C (roof top unit that sits on ground)-Administration 

Reznor (4 units)-Shop 

Sterling – Crib Room 

Mark – Security Office 

Library 

14300 Sibley 

Riverview, MI  48193 

3- A/C condensing units

2- low pressure 376,000 BTU Lochnvar boilers Mod # KBN400

Facilitec control system

Municipal Building 

14100 Civic Park Drive 

Riverview, MI  48193 

3- Bryan low pressure 4,850,000 BTU boilers Mod #L-72

1 – York centrifuge chiller Mod #YT Style J with optiview control center

All pneumatic controls

All air handler systems for the above equipment

Scout Cabin 

17510 Hinton 

Riverview, MI  48193 

Forced air furnace 

The bid is for a three-year period. We are asking for compensation to be quoted at an hourly rate, 

overtime rate and a percentage for any parts mark up.  Invoices for parts to be submitted with billing. The 

City of Riverview General Conditions to Bidders is incorporated as a part of these specifications. 

All vendor employees must sign in/out at the Land Preserve administration office prior to service and 

upon completion of work. 

DATE: DATE: 

 DIRECTOR OF PURCHASING DIRECTOR 

___________________ ________________________ 



Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.3



























Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.4







QUOTE
Date

5/22/2024

Quote #

5508

Name / Address

RIVERVIEW, CITY OF
14100 CIVIC PARK DRIVE
RIVERVIEW, MI  48193-7600

West Shore Services, Inc.

Terms

Net 30

Project Name

Control Point Upgrade

Phone: 616-895-4347
Fax: 616-895-7158

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (6.0%)

6620 Lake Michigan Dr. 
PO Box 188
Allendale, MI 49401

Item Description Qty Rate Total

FEDERAL COMMANDER DIGITAL SYSTEM
SFCD10 COMMANDER SOFTWARE,PRGMNG,10 SITE 1 3,086.00 3,086.00

SS2000+ C SERIES, ENCODER, DIGITAL 2-WAY CNTL, DESK MOUNT 1 4,419.00 4,419.00

LABOR - RADIO ENGINEER:
TK-S-CPSYSOP System Optimization of 1 Activation-Control Pt - Hourly Estimate - Actual will be billed 20 141.75 2,835.00

INCLUDES:
 +  Installation of Digital Commander SFCDware (must be version 14.9 or newer to be compatible

with Windows10); 
 +  Installation of new CPU with 19” monitor, speakers, keyboard and mouse; 
 +  Integration of new CPU with existing encoder;
 +  Formatted map identifying location of each warning siren; 
 +  Full system testing to insure system operability; 
 +  Training for all available staff (additional charge if return visit necessary); 
 +  All necessary labor, travel and expenses. 

Terms Please note: Attached Sales Agreement Terms and Conditions apply. Sales tax and Shipping not
included unless otherwise shown.  Electrical service by others unless otherwise quoted.  Required
permits and/or licenses are the responsibility of others.  WSS is not responsible for rock drilling or
differing site conditions; if discovered extra charges will apply.

Package Price – Line item price not available separately and/or for lesser quantities.  In case of
scope or quantity changes, West Shore reserves the right to modify quote.

0.00

$10,340.00

$10,340.00

$0.00

Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.5



 West Shore Services, Inc. 
     6620 Lake Michigan Drive, P.O. Box 188, Allendale, MI 49401 

     Phone: 616-895-4347      Fax: 616-895-7158 

 Est. 1971 

SALES AGREEMENT 

Agreement.  This agreement (the “Agreement”) between West Shore Services, Inc. (“WSS”) and Buyer for the sale of the products and services described in WSS’s quotation and 
any subsequent purchase order shall consist of the terms herein.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between WSS and Buyer regarding such sale and supersedes all 
prior oral or written representations and agreements.  This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment signed by authorized representatives of WSS and Buyer and 
attached hereto except that stenographic and clerical errors are subject to correction by WSS or upon WSS’s written consent.  WSS objects to and shall not be bound by any 
additional or different terms, whether printed or otherwise, in Buyer’s purchase order or in any other communication from Buyer to WSS unless specifically agreed to by WSS in writing.  
Prior courses of dealing between the parties or trade usage, to the extent they add to, detract from, supplant, or explain this Agreement, shall not be binding on WSS.  This Agreement 
shall be for the benefit of WSS and Buyer only and not for the benefit of any other person. 

Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated only upon WSS’s written consent.  IF WSS shall declare or consent to a termination of the Agreement, in whole or in part, Buyer, 
in the absence of a contrary written agreement signed by WSS, shall pay termination charges based upon expenses and costs incurred in the assembly of its products on in the 
performance of the services to the date such termination is accepted by WSS including, but not limited to, expenses of disposing of materials on hand or on order from suppliers and 
the losses resulting from such disposition, plus a reasonable profit.  In addition, any products substantially completed or services performed on or prior to any termination of this 
Agreement shall be accepted and paid for in full by Buyer.  In the event of a material breach of this Agreement by Buyer, the insolvency of Buyer, or the initiation of any solvency or 
bankruptcy proceedings by or against Buyer, WSS shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement, and Buyer shall be liable for termination charges as set forth herein. 

Price/Shipping/Payment.  Depending on product purchased, prices are F.O.B. UNIVERSITY PARK, IL and/or ALLENDALE, MI.  Buyer shall be responsible for all shipping 
charges.  If this Agreement is for more than one unit of product, the products may be shipped in a single lot or in several lots are the discretion of WSS, and Buyer shall pay for each 
such shipment separately.  WSS may require full or partial payment or payment guarantee in advance of shipment whenever, in its opinion, the financial condition of Buyer so 
warrants.  WSS will invoice for product upon shipment to Buyer and for services monthly as completed.  Amounts invoiced by WSS are due 30 days from date of invoice, except that 
payment terms for turn-key sales of products and services are 10% of total contract mobilization fee due with Buyer’s order.  Invoice deductions will not be honored unless covered by 
a credit memorandum.  Minimum billing per order is $75.00. 

Risk of Loss.  The risk of loss of the products or any part thereof shall pass to the Buyer upon delivery thereof by WSS to the carrier.  Buyer shall have sole responsibility for 
processing and collection of any claim of loss against the carrier. 

Hold Harmless.  Buyer, shall hold WSS harmless from and shall indemnify WSS against any claim, liability, loss or damage, including the attendant costs of litigation, arising out of 
or directly related to any contract entered into with a customer of the Buyer or potential customer, provided expressly that the claim, liability, loss or damage is caused by or directly 
related to: (i) the use of the Products; (ii) the Services provided by the Buyer; (iii) any act or omission of the Buyer related to any claim of infringement of any intellectual property rights 
of third parties; and (iv) for any violation by the Buyer of any laws or applicable regulations governing the use or sale of the Products or Services of the Buyer, which is brought against 
WSS relating to the activities of WSS contemplated by this Agreement. This provision shall apply ONLY if Buyer is notified of such matter described herein by the WSS within five (5) 
business days of WSS’s notice of such matter, regardless of form of notice or knowledge.  Buyer reserves all rights to directly defend itself in any such proceedings, and shall have the 
absolute right to direct the defense of WSS with respect thereto. 

WSS shall hold the Buyer harmless and shall save, defend and indemnify the Buyer against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, suits and other proceedings, including any 
resulting costs of defense and damages, which arise out of or occur as a result from the conduct of WSS, including, but not limited to, misrepresentations regarding the Products or 
Services provided by WSS, breach of contract, breach of his duties hereunder and engaging in misleading or deceptive sales practices.  WSS shall have the absolute right to direct 
and control its defense of any such matter arising as a result of the same. 

Taxes.  Price quotes by WSS do not include taxes.  Buyer shall pay WSS, in addition to the price of the products of services, any applicable tax (however designated) imposed upon 
the sale, production, delivery or use of the products or services to the extent required or not forbidden by law to be collected by WSS from Buyer, whether or not so collected at the 
time of the sale, unless valid exemption certificates acceptable to the taxing authorities are furnished to WSS before the date of the invoice. 

Delivery.  Although WSS shall in good faith endeavor to meet estimated delivery dates, delivery dates are not guaranteed but are estimated on the basis of immediate receipt by 
WSS of all information required from Buyer and the absence of delays, direct or indirect, as set forth in paragraph 29 herein. 

Returns.  Buyer may return shipped product to WSS only upon WSS’s prior written consent (such consent to be in the sole discretion of WSS) and upon terms specified by WSS, 
including prevailing restocking and handling charges.  Buyer assumers all risk of loss for such returned product until actual receipt thereof by WSS.  Agents of WSS are not authorized 
to accept returned product or to grant allowances or adjustments with respect to Buyer’s account. 

Inspection.  Buyer shall inspect the product immediately upon receipt.  All claims for any alleged defect in WSS’s product or deficiency in the performance of its services under this 
Agreement, capable of discovery upon reasonable inspection, must be fully set forth in writing and received by WSS within 30 days of Buyer’s receipt of the product or WSS’s 
performance of the services.  Failure to make any such claim within said 30 day period shall constitute a waiver of such claim and an irrevocable acceptance of the product and 
services by Buyer. 

Limited Warranty.  WSS warrants each new product to be free from defects in material and workmanship, under normal use and service, for a period of two years from the delivery 
to Buyer (one-year for informers and all software products, five years of 2001 & ECLIPSE Series siren head).  During this warranty WSS will provide warranty service for any unit 
which is delivered, shipping prepaid by the Buyer, to a designated warranty service center for examination and such examination reveals a defect in material and/or workmanship.  
WSS will then, at its option, repair or replace the product or any defective part(s), or remit the purchase price of the product to Buyer.  This warranty does not cover travel expenses, 
the cost of specialized equipment for gaining access to the product, or labor charges for removal and re-installation of the product for warranty service at any location other WSS’s 
designated warranty service center.  This warranty shall not apply to components or accessories that have a separate warranty by the original manufacturer, such as, but not limited to, 
radios and batteries, and does not extend to any unit which has been subjected to abuse, misuse, improper installation or which has been inadequately maintained, not to units with 
problems due to service or modification by other than a WSS warranty service center.  WSS will provide on-site warranty service during the first 60 days after the completion of the 
installation when WSS has provided a turn-key installation including optimization and/or commissioning services.  THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 



West Shore Services – Sales Agreement Terms and Conditions 2014     Page 2 of 2 

Remedies and Limitations of Liability.  Buyer’s sole remedy for breach of warranty shall be as set forth above.  IN NO EVENT SHALL WSS BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF USE 
OF ANY PRODUCT, LOST PROFITS OR ANY INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, NOR SHALL WSS’S LIABILITY FOR ANY OTHER DAMAGES 
WHATSOEVER ARISING OUT OR OF CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OF THE MANUFACTURE, SALE, DELIVERY OR USE OF THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES 
EXCEED THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE PRODUCTS OR SERVICES. 

Patents.  WSS shall hold Buyer harmless, to the extent herein provided, against any valid claim by any third person or infringement of any United States Patent by product 
manufactured by WSS, but if Buyer furnished product of system design specifications to WSS, Buyer shall hold WSS harmless against any infringement claim consisting of the use of 
product manufactured by WSS in accordance with Buyer’s products or system design or in combination with product manufactured by Buyer or others.  In the event that any product 
manufactured by WSS is held to infringe any patent and its use is enjoined by any competent court of law, WSS, if unable within a reasonable time to secure for Buyer the right to 
continue using such product, either by suspension of the injunction, by securing for Buyer a license, or otherwise, shall, at its own expense, either replace such product with non-
infringing product, either by suspension of the injunction, by securing for Buyer, a license or otherwise, shall, at its own expense, either replace such product with non-infringing 
product or modify such product so that it becomes non-infringing, or accept the return of the enjoined product and refund the purchase price paid by Buyer less alliance for any period 
of actual use thereof.  WSS makes no warranty that its product will be delivered free of a valid claim by a third person of infringement of the like and Buyer’s remedies for such a claim 
will be limited to those provided in this paragraph. 

Assignment and Delegation.  Buyer shall not assign any right or interest in this Agreement, nor delegate the performance of any obligation, without WSS’s prior written consent.  
Any attempted assignment or delegation shall be void and ineffective for all purposes unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

Severability.  If any term, clause or provision contained in this Agreement is declared or held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such declaration or holding shall not affect 
the validity of any other term, clause or provision herein contained. 

Installation.  Installation shall be by Buyer unless otherwise specifically agreed to in writing by WSS. 

Governing Law and Limitations.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Michigan.  Venue for any proceeding initiated as the result of any dispute 
between the parties that arises under this Agreement shall be either the state of federal courts in Kent or Ottawa County, Michigan.  Whenever a term defined by the Uniform 
Commercial Code as adopted in Michigan is used in this Agreement, the definition contained in said Uniform Commercial Code is to control.  Any action for breach of this Agreement 
or any covenant or warranty contained herein must be commenced within one year after the cause of action had accrued. 

Receiving Product and Staging Location.  Buyer is responsible to receive, store and protect all products intended for installation purposes, including, but not exclusively, siren 
equipment, poles, batteries, and installation materials.  Materials received in cardboard containers must be protected from all forms of precipitation.  Additionally, Buyer is to provide a 
staging area of an appropriate size for installation to work from and to store equipment overnight. 

Installation Methods & Materials.  Installation is based on methods and specifications designed and intended by WSS to meet or exceed all national, state, and local safety and 
installation codes and regulations.  Design changes required by Buyer may result in additional charges. 

Radio Frequency Interference.  WSS is not responsible for RF transmission and reception affected by system interference beyond its control. 

Installation Site Approval.  Buyer must provide signed documentation to WSS such as the “WARNING SITE SURVEY” or a document with the equivalent information, that WSS 
is authorized to commence installation at the site designated by Buyer before WSS will commence installation.  Once installation has started at an approved site, Buyer is responsible 
for all additional costs incurred by WSS for redeployment of resources if the work is stopped by Buyer of its agents, property owners, or as the result of any governmental authority or 
court order, or if it is determined that installation is not possible at the intended location, or the site is changed for any reason by the Buyer. 

AC Power Hookup.  Buyer is responsible to coordinate and pay for all costs to bring proper AC power to the electrical service disconnect installed adjacent to the controller cabinet, 
unless these services are quoted by WSS.  All indoor installations assume AC power is available with 10 feet of the installation location. 

Permits & Easements.  Unless specifically quoted, buyer is responsible for obtaining all required easements and/or permits, along with any fees required for installation. 

Soil Conditions Clause.  In the event of poor site conditions including but not limited to rock, cave-ins, high water levels, or inability of soil to provide stable installation to meet 
manufacturers specifications, WSS will direct installation crews to attempt pole installation for a maximum of two (2) hours.  Buyer approval will be sought when pole installation 
exceeds two (2) hours and WSS cannot obtain approval in a timely manner to proceed with extra work. 

Contaminated Sites.  WSS is not responsible for cleanup and restoration of any installation sites or installer equipment where contaminated soil is encountered.  WSS will not 
knowingly approve installation at any site containing contaminates.  Buyer must inform WSS when known or suspected soil contaminates exist at any intended installation site. 

Site Cleanup.  Basic installation site cleanup include installation debris removal, general site cleanup, and general leveling of affected soil within 30’ of the pole.  Additional Site 
Restoration quotes are available. 

Waste Disposal.  Buyer is responsible for providing disposal of all packing materials including shipping skids and containers. 

Work Hours.  All installation quotes are based on the ability to work outdoors during daylight hours and indoors from 7 AM to 7 PM Monday through Saturday.  Work restrictions or 
limitations imposed by Buyer or its agents may result in additional charges being assessed to Buyer for services. 

Project Reporting.  Installation & Service Progress Reports will be provided on a regular basis, normally every week during active installation, unless pre-arranged otherwise by 
mutual agreement. 

Safety Requirements & Compliance.  WSS requires that all employees and subcontractors follow applicable laws and regulations pertaining to all work performed, equipment 
utilized and personal protective gear common to electrical and construction site work performed in the installation of WSS equipment.  Additional safety compliance requirements by 
Buyer, such as, but not limited to, additional training or testing, may result in additional charges assessed to Buyer for the time and expenses required to comply with the additional 
requirements. 

Project Delays.  WSS shall not be liable in any regard for delivery or installation delays or any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement resulting directly or indirectly 
from change order processing, acts or failure to act by Buyer, unresponsive inspectors, utility companies and any other causes beyond the direct control of WSS, including acts of 
God, weather, local disasters of any type, civil or military authority, fires, war, riot, delays in transportation, lack of or inability to obtain raw materials, components, labor, fuel or 
supplies, or other circumstances beyond WSS’s reasonable control, whether similar or dissimilar to the foregoing. 



Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 9.6









RESOLUTION NO. 24-13 

BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS AND OPERATING MILLAGE RATES FOR 

OPERATION, DEBT, LOCAL ROADS, LIBRARY,  

AND GARBAGE & RUBBISH SERVICES  

JULY 1, 2024 – JUNE 30, 2025 

WHEREAS, the expenditures for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 

2025, are hereby appropriated on a departmental and activity total basis as follows: 

General Fund:

City Council 90,252$     

City Manager 364,470 

Purchasing / Assessing 140,882 

City Attorney 521,000 

City Clerk 313,978 

Finance / Treasury 558,688 

Human Resources 211,388 

Debt Service - 

Police 4,887,313 

Fire 2,539,440 

Public Works 1,270,528 

Building Maintenance 388,466 

Motor Vehicles 231,707 

Parks Maintenance 86,967 

Community Development 146,348 

Building & Engineering 399,724 

Recreation 852,694 

Management Information Systems 284,726 

Employee Benefits 35,650 

Insurance 146,050 

Operating Transfers Out 110,000 

Total Expenditures 13,580,271$    

Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 10.1



WHEREAS, revenues for the 2024/25 fiscal year are estimated as follows: 

General Fund:

Property Taxes 7,619,415$       

Interest & Investment Income 625,000 

Transfers (In) 585,000 

Licenses & Permits 652,487 

Federal Sources 30,000 

State Sources 1,850,609 

Fine & Forfeitures 50,000 

Charges for Services 908,850 

Charges to Other Funds 1,107,516 

Other Revenue 22,512 

Recreation 242,925 

Total Revenues 13,694,314$         

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby approves budgets for the period of July 1, 2024 through 

June 30, 2025, for the following funds in the amounts set forth below: 

Major Streets Fund 969,026$      

Local Streets Fund 1,152,268 

Garbage & Rubbish Fund 829,500 

Cable & Telecomm Fund 390,072 

Drug Law Enforcement Fund 36,700 

Library Fund 444,749 

Comm Dev Block Grant Fund 20,000 

Street & Water Main Bonds 935,750 

Cap Imprvmt/Equipmt Fund 1,272,851 

Golf Combined 2,675,989 

Water & Sewer Fund 6,184,142 

Land Preserve Fund 12,271,836           

Self-Insurance Fund 486,834 

Retiree Insurance Fund 1,458,585 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Riverview has been advised by the City Assessor 

that the State Taxable Valuation for the 2024 tax year of taxable value property 

located within the City of Riverview is $413,451,998, as compared to $377,978,249 

taxable value for the 2023 tax year including net 2023 additions: 



WHEREAS, The City Tax Rates were also set in May 2024, for the 2024/25 fiscal year after the 

required notices were filed and public hearing held. The Tax Rates were calculated 

in accordance with Michigan Compiled Law Section 211.34 E and 211.34 D. The 

City Tax Rates calculated are the minimum required to defray the operating 

expenses for the fiscal year July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2025. The approved tax 

rates are as follows:  

Operating Millage Rate per thousand taxable value 
1. City Operating $14.627/thousand taxable value 
2. Refuse Collection 1.74/thousand taxable value 
3. Library Operation 0.80/thousand taxable value 
4. Local Road Repair   0.70/thousand taxable value 
5. Fire Protection 1.47/thousand taxable value 
6. Public Safety Special Assessment 2.00/thousand taxable value 
7. Road Bond (Voter Approved) 2.40/thousand taxable value 

Total City Tax Rate – July 1, 2024 $23.737/thousand taxable value 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council hereby approves the City Budget 

containing the appropriations and levy of taxes for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 

30, 2025 and all sums be paid into the several funds to which they belong and that the City 

tax rate for the fiscal year 2024/25 for the City of Riverview shall be set at $14.627 

operating; $1.74 refuse collection and disposal; $0.80 for Library service; $0.70 for Local 

Road Repair; $1.47 for Fire Services; Public Safety Special Assessment $2.0; and $2.4 for 

Voter Approved ater Main and Road Construction Bonds; for a combined July 1, 2024 tax 

rate of $23.737 per thousand taxable value. 

AYES:   

NAYS:  

EXCUSED:  

ADOPTED this 3rd day of June 2024. 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Andrew M. Swift, Mayor 

I, Shane Anne Harrison, duly authorized City Clerk of the City of Riverview, do hereby 

certify the foregoing Resolution is a true copy of a resolution adopted by the Riverview 

City Council at their regular meeting of June 3, 2024. 

( S E A L ) 

__________________________________ 

Shane Anne Harrison, City Clerk 







 2024 - 2025 Proposed Rate Table for
Environmental Engineering

Sr. Technical Specialist 195.48$   201.34$   5.86$   3.0%
Executive Consultant/Principal 180.41$   185.82$   5.41$   3.0%
Project Director 173.02$   178.21$   5.19$   3.0%
Project Manager III 146.55$   150.95$   4.40$   3.0%
Project Manager II 135.04$   139.09$   4.05$   3.0%
Project Manager I 128.03$   131.87$   3.84$   3.0%
Project Engineer/Scientist V 121.51$   125.16$   3.65$   3.0%
Project Engineer/Scientist IV 110.59$   113.91$   3.32$   3.0%
Project Engineer/Scientist III 101.57$   104.62$   3.05$   3.0%
Project Engineer/Scientist II 90.53$   93.25$   2.72$   3.0%
Project Engineer/Scientist I 80.46$   82.88$   2.41$   3.0%
Assistant Engineer/Scientist 69.42$   71.50$   2.08$   3.0%
Senior A/E 50.62$   52.14$   1.52$   3.0%
CADD Designer I 86.74$   89.34$   2.60$   3.0%
CADD Operator I 68.11$   70.15$   2.04$   3.0%
Field Technician IV 63.01$   64.90$   1.89$   3.0%
Field Technician III 58.38$   60.13$   1.75$   3.0%
Field Technician II 53.40$   55.00$   1.60$   3.0%
Administrative 76.79$   79.10$   2.30$   3.0%
Clerical/Admin 52.09$   53.65$   1.56$   3.0%

Proposed  Rate for 
FY 2024-2025

Approved  Rate for 
FY 2023-2024Proposed RLP Billing Title Delta

2024-2025 Proposed Rates v.f.xlsx

Council Meeting
June 3, 2024
Item: 11.1


	06.03.2024 Agenda
	Item 5.1 - May 20, 2024 Minutes
	Item 9.1 - Ratify Emergency Sewage Pump Replacement
	Item 9.2 - Reject Bid & Authorize Rebid of HVAC
	Item 9.3 - Renewal of Video Service Agreement - Comcast
	Item 9.4 - Award Bid Storage Area Network System
	Item 9.5 - Approve Purchase Replacement Hardware Software
	Item 9.6 - Authorize Addendum to Unifirst
	Item 10.1 - Resolution 2024/25 Operating Budget & Millage Rates
	Item 11.1 - Approve TetraTech Contract Extension



